BOARD OF SELECTMEN
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2023
AGENDA -7:00 P.M.

Call-In Number: 1-929-205-6099
Meeting ID: 818 7062 0439

Call to Order.
. Public Comment.
3. Correspondence:
a. Bike Walk Bolton
4. Approval of Minutes:
a. November 8, 2023 — Regular Meeting.
b. November 21, 2023 — Special Meeting.
5. Ongoing Business.
a. Consider and Possibly Act on First Selectman’s Salary.
6. New Business:
a. Consider and Act on Budget Workshop Meeting Dates for 2024.
b. Consider and Act on BOS members for the Following Committees:
1. Finance Committee.
2. BOS Finance and Administration Subcommittee.
3. BOS Facilities and Public Safety Subcommittee.
4. BOS Human Resources/Personnel Subcommittee.
c. Consider and Act on 1% Organizational Finance Committee Meeting Date (December 19, 2023 -immediately
following A/P meeting?) and 2 Other Dates Before January 31.
d. Consider and Act on Giving the Town Administrator the Authorization to Perform Various Firearms Permitting
and Administrative Functions.
e. Action on Town Administrator’s Contract and Wage Increase.
7. Reports an Updates:
a. Properties and Facilities Admin. Report.
b. FY 24 Budget Report.
c. A/P Report.
d. Budget Transfers.
8.  First Selectman’s Report.
9. Administrative Officer’s Report.
a. Monthly Report.
b. Other.
10. Adjournment.

N —

To access the meeting audio in real time, please call 1-929-205-6099 and enter the Meeting ID: 818 7062 0439

Preference for public commenting will be given to pre-registrants. To pre-register for public comment please contact Kathy at 1-
860-649-8066 x6111 prior to 3 p.m. the day of the meeting. Audio recordings of each meeting are posted to the Town’s website
within seven days following the live event.



December 5, 2023

Dear Bolton Board of Select-persons:
Re: Recent repainting of lines (white) on Route 44 by DOT.

Background: Bike Walk Bolton has learned that for CTDOT to consider changes when paving or
painting they should receive a request from a town’s LTA (Local Traffic Authority). Current CTDOT
guidelines for safer roads require lane width to be no more than 11’ wherever possible. It is known
that reducing lane widths for drivers causes them to drive slower making the road safer for all road
users including motorists, pedestrians and cyclists.

Recently Rte. 44 in Bolton was repainted keeping the existing lane widths which range from 12’17’
in both directions. (see map below for more details). These excessive lane widths result in
increased motor vehicle speed, a well-documented outcome, which impacts the safety of

everyone. Route 44 is an important access road to town amenities on both the east and west side of
Bolton Notch. All road users should be able to access these amenities safely. Slower speed

would allow motorists to more safely enter and exit their homes, businesses and side roads while
traveling on Rte. 44. Slower motorist speed and additional shoulder width (due to lane width
reduction) would also be safer for other road users such as pedestrians, runners and cyclists.

Please note, we are not asking for bike lanes along rte 44.

Request:

On behalf of concerned residents of Bolton and neighboring towns who use this corridor Bike Walk
Bolton is asking the Bolton BOS to request that the CTDOT:

1. black out the current lines that are not in keeping with CTDOT 11’ safety guidelines and paint new
lines that reflect this safety measure.

2. include the 11’ recommended “road diet” in all future state road projects in Bolton.
Thank you in advance for your support on this request.

Sincerely;

Sylvia Ounpuu, Barbara Amodio, Jim Adams, Chris Duffy, Debbie Livingston, Kim and Brian Welch,
Arlene Fiano, Erin Anderson, David Waldburger, Bill Penn, Dani and Ned Kennedy, Michael Gross,
John Bolduc, Tom Ouellette, Linda and Earle Armstrong, Rod Parlee



J3p|noys ou S| aJayy
se suel1sapad/sisi|oAd 104 snoss3uep si (g) pue ‘siseq Jejndau e uo
suoideJaqul Jed snosdguep saieald (z) ‘sue| Suiquid e se aAldayaUl
(T) s12y31) o1yjeus siy1 wouy 3sea Suipeay ,aue| Suiquid, 1oys sy

"U0I303S SIY3 Ul (SpIm 193}
LT 01 TT woJy Suidues) suondaJIp Yloq Ul SAISSIIXD aJe SYipim sue

‘Foxeiuolmiepm @ / GO
M 110 40J0IN 211BYIUAS 4@ :
i ‘ PCEI|EERTIVE)
2 : ’ ® ‘dojuieiuno
0

"U0I329S SIY}
Ul SUOI3IBIIP Y30 Ul SAISSIIXD PUE B|qelIeA 3Je SYIPIM SueT

42
h

Y S9|U0NZ3[3 B 109/3]qY.
- .
co:om%

‘cﬂwsonm._ aARuqe||0D)
SU2UUONSIPPTIN

1\._. RaNUN OYF
mwu_Emm._mea 2 ; - ajaws a9y *

) Y o
a\ . 1.mE.._c< :o_cmaEco ! z e
& Elouag JejjogL.
m:c.:wk ou_ocooum ¥ r_.u::S \eog wxm._
® uojjog'iamo

g
)
(-8

€20z-1das-g u01jog Ul tt 1Y UO SYIPIAA DUBT AISSIIX]



‘Ajorewixoidde 109} ¢ 01 dn aJe pue

Aren eaie siy1 ul syipim sue| sy ‘(dew payoene

uo doo| moj|e mmw oul] UMO| awcm>oo ay]

O} spusixe pue spus Aladoid piek-aAeib ay) ueym
SHE]S {7 814 Uo UuI82U09 Jo eale Alepuodsas sy .

'(dew psyoene uo dooj pas 99s)
pseA-anelb pjo ue Jo eale By Ul SYIPIM BuE 199)
L1 Ajerewixoudde umop s)osu peol sy Yolym Jaye
(peod e1eald) ajolin apIS oyeT pue YOI10N u0}|04g
USBM]S(Q SI 8pIM 188) 9| 0] dn aJe SYIPIM SUuE]

S} 8laym i @ UO uId2U09 Jo eade Atewidd ay| .



&
3 ;

1 pommid
G
?@“; b4

BOLTON BOARD OF SELECTMEN
SPECIAL MEETING
7:00 PM, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2023
NOTCH ROAD MUNICIPAL CENTER ROOM B
In-Person and Virtual (Hybrid Format)

MINUTES

Board of Selectmen Members Present In-Person: First Selectman Pamela Sawyer, Deputy First
Selectman Robert Morra, Adam Teller
Board of Selectmen Members Present Via Zoom: Michael Eremita, Robert DePietro (arrived 7:13 p.m.)

Staff Present In-Person: Town Administrator James Rupert
Staff Present Via Zoom: Recording Secretary Linda H. McDonald

Others Present Via Zoom: Nick Lavigne (Community Voice Channel), Fire Chief Bruce Dixon, Deputy

Chief Matt Perriera
Others Present In-Person: Jim Loersch, Rodney Fournier, Amanda Gordon, Mather Clarke, Gwen

Marrion, Tim Sadler

1. Call to Order: P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 7:12 p.m. She reflected on her time as
First Selectman, stating it has been an absolute privilege to serve as First Selectman and it has
been an honor to serve with the board members. She thanked those who served with her,
working on the many issues important to the town.

2. Public Comment:
Jim Loersch of Brookfield Road expressed his concern with the condition of the town hall and
commented that the town has to really think about a new town hall at the location of the Notch

Road Municipal Building.

Rodney Fournier thanked the current board for their service and said he looks forward to
working with the new board.

3. Approval of Minutes:

3.a Regular Meeting Minutes -October 3, 2023:
M. Eremita MOVED to approve the October 3, 2023 regular meeting minutes as presented. R.
DePietro SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 4:0:1 with R. Morra abstaining.

3.b Special A/P Meeting Minutes—October 17, 2023:
R. Morra MOVED to approve the October 17, 2023 special meeting minutes as presented. R.
DePietro SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

3.c Special A/P Meeting Minutes— November 2, 2023:
M. Eremita MOVED to approve the November 2, 2023 special A/P meeting minutes as
presented. R. Morra SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

4, Appointments and Resignations:

Bolton BOS 11/8/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Pagelof6



4.a

4.b

4.c

Resignation of Trish Brudz as Library Assistant Il:

A. Teller MOVED that the Board of Selectmen to accept with appreciation and regret the
resignation of Trish Brudz as Library Assistant Il. R. Morra SECONDED. R. DePietro commented
she has been very helpful, not only with the library programs but with taxpayers that have had
come forward with problems. He said he will really miss her. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Resignation of Randy Heckman as Building Official effective 11/17/23:

R. Morra MOVED that the Board of Selectmen accept with appreciation and regret the
resignation of Randy Heckman as Building Official effective 11/17/23. M. Eremita SECONDED. R.
Morra commented he appreciates his service to the town and wishes him the best of luck in his
new venture. M. Eremita commented R. Heckman is professional, competent, and a good
person to work with. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Appointment Letter for James Lockhart as Vernon Assistant Animal Control Officer :
R. Morra MOVED to accept the appointment of James Lockhart as Assistant Animal Control
Officer. A. Teller SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Correspondence: Jay Brudz-Selectman’s Salary Letter:

P. Sawyer said the board received a letter regarding the First Selectman’s salary issue that was
brought up during public comment at the October 3, 2023 meeting. She said the letter from Jay
Brudz, prior member of the Charter Commission, takes exception with some of the comments
that were said and the public comment regarding the Charter revision intent.

As a former member of the Charter Commission, A. Teller stated that Mr. Brudz’s comments are
totally accurate and he endorses his recollection.

P. Sawyer said this is something (possible changes to the compensation and benefits for the
office of First Selectman) the new board can look at if they wish to bring it forward. She added
it would be beneficial to have a public hearing on this if the matter is brought forward.

Ongoing Business:

Possibly Consider and Act on Donation of Fire Truck (based on fair market value):

P. Sawyer read a text she received from M. Eremita about the prices of comparable vehicles: a
1997 Eifire truck pumper with tank - $9,500; a 1995 Spartan Laverne pumper 1500/1000 -
$10,000; a 1993 International - $20,500; 1974 Maxim F Model fire truck - $7,500.

Fire Chief Dixon commented on the letter he sent to the Town Administrator on his research
reaching out to various sources and he said he received three responses on different kinds of
trucks. He noted the Eastern Connecticut Fire School has raised its offer to $6,000 in training for
the fire department members in exchange for the donation of the fire truck.

Deputy Fire Chief M. Perriera said he agrees that the fire truck does not have any value outside
the fire department and the best option is to donate the truck to Eastern CT Fire School.

R. Morra commented it is a fiscally sound move to donate the truck for fire training as it is too
costly for the town to maintain and insure.

Adam Teller said he has no objection to donating the truck to the fire school.

Bolton BOS 11/8/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6



7.b

R. DePietro said he sees the truck as a viable piece of equipment that should be kept and used
by the town, if needed.

M. Perriera said, currently, there is no space to store the truck. Discussion followed on the lack
of space to store the truck if retained by the town and possible ideas to create a space.

R. Morra MOVED to donate the ET to the Eastern CT Fire School as a lifetime exchange for
$6,000 worth of training for the members of the Bolton Volunteer Fire Department. M. Eremita

SECONDED.

Chief Dixon said the donation would be a welcome addition to the fire school and definitely
needed.

P. Sawyer said she concurs with the donation of the truck as it would be going to a mutual aid
service.

MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

New Business
Consider and Act on Proposed 2024 BOS Meeting Dates:

R. Morra MOVED to approve the following 2024 Board of Selectmen regular meeting dates:
Tuesday, January 2
Tuesday, February 6
Tuesday, March 5
Tuesday, April 2
Tuesday, May 7
Tuesday, June 4
Tuesday, July 2
Tuesday, August 6
Tuesday, September 3
Tuesday, October 8
Tuesday, November 12
Tuesday, December 3

All 2024 BOS regular meetings are scheduled for 7:00 p.m.
Adam Teller SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Discussion on Lane Widths on Route 44:

J. Rupert commented on the letter from Sylvia Ounpuu and Barbara Amodio of Bike Walk Bolton
on making Route 44 safer for all road users in Bolton. Their issue is that the lines on Route 44
were re-painted recently without taking into account the CTDOT recommended “road diet”
(reducing the lane widths and increasing shoulder widths. They wrote to find out if the town
would be willing to request from the DOT that a correction be made to the sections of the lane
areas on Route 44 that are wider (in some cases up to 6 feet wider) than the current DOT
guidelines for this type of road.

Bolton BOS 11/8/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page3of 6



8.b

8.d

10.

R. Morra asked why the state has that width for lanes.
R. DePietro noted this would only be an advisory recommendation from the town.

R. Morra MOVED to engage the Connecticut Department of Transportation (CTDOT) to inquire if
there is a reason why the lanes on Route 44 could not be made narrower. A. Teller SECONDED.
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Discussion on Speeding Traffic Around Town:

J. Rupert reported the town has heard from many residents about speeding around town. He
has spoken with the state troopers and they are trying to find a balance to keep traffic under
control.

Reports and Updates:

Properties and Facilities Administrator Report:

8.a.1 Temporary Building:

J. Rupert reported there are finishing issues with the unit that have been acknowledged by
Willscot. Electricity has been connected to the building, which will make it easier for the
company to fix the issues. J. Rupert said the town has not accepted the building and will walk
through the unit for final acceptance when Willscot has finished their work.

8.b.2 Connectivity Trail:

J. Rupert reported Landie Construction notified they should be on the trail this Friday or next
Monday, should finish up in about 10 days and then will move over to the temporary building to
help with the water and septic connections.

8.a.3 Possible Plans for Taking Down the Notch Road Municipal Center and Vision for that
Space: J. Rupert reported the town is finalizing bid documents for design professional services to
assist with the tear-down and rebuilding process. He said the town would also like the bid-
winning company to help put bid specs together for the tear-down of the structure.

Discussion followed on the possible contamination of materials on the site after the structure
comes down. No action taken.

FY 24 Budget Report: J. Rupert reported there are no red flags in the report. The tax collector’s
report is also on track. No action needed.

A/P Report:
M. Eremita MOVED that the Board of Selectmen accept the A/P report as presented. R. Morra
SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.
Budget Transfers: No action needed.
First Selectman’s Report:
P. Sawyer reported that the Town Administrator has been very forthcoming with issues to share
on their updates. She said many of the issues in her report have been covered in this meeting.

Administrative Officer’s Report

Bolton BOS 11/8/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6



10.a

10.b

Monthly Report:

J. Rupert reported on the following:

e Submitted additional information to the CT Department of Public Health for the STEAP
Grant regarding the septic system

e He attended the awards ceremony and accepted the Sustainable CT Award with Patric
Carson. He thanked P. Carson, Amanda Gordon and staff for helping to put the information
together for this program.

e Town Meeting was held regarding the Teachers’ Contract

e Opioid information was submitted to the CT Conference of Municipalities
Capital Budget package was sent to all department heads

e Paperwork was submitted to the Diocese of Norwich for the polling location

e Various staff participated in the State emergency preparedness exercise

e A quarter staff meeting was held where the budget was discussed and copies of the adopted
financial policy manual was provided to all department heads

e The Truck or Treat event was very successful

e The annual drug takeback was held at the RST office

e The annual report process has begun

e Took delivery of the new building

e Moved the Registrar of Voters Office to Room A in the NRMB
Joe Dillon walked the Heritage Farm with Gwen Marrion and Richard Treat to look at the
projected pathway route

e  Williams Road and a portion of French Road have been paved

e Working on updating the Local Emergency Operations Plan

e Held regular update meeting with Eversource

e Attended the CTCMA meeting

e Attended the monthly Eastern Highlands Health District meeting s well as the personnel
subcommittee meeting

e Attended the Capitol Region Policy Board meeting

P. Sawyer recognized the effort put forward by the administration to work with the Registrars of
Voters regarding their work to satisfy all their elections needs. She also thanked the Registrars
for their work on the election.

Other:
The consensus of the members was to hold the next A/P meeting on Tuesday, November 21,

2023 at 5:00 p.m.

The outgoing members addressed the board. Michael Eremita encouraged the new board to
stay within the rules but seriously think outside the box when it comes to the future of Bolton.
He thanked everyone for allowing him to be with them for the past eight years and he has
enjoyed it immensely.

Adam Teller stated he has enjoyed serving with the members of the board. He especially called
out P. Sawyer for having taken on this obligation at a difficult time with grace and warmth. He
said he values the warmth all the members brought to this board and how well we worked
together. He said he recognizes how deeply they all care about the town. He thanked the

Bolton BOS 11/8/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6



11.

12,

13.

people of Bolton for allowing him to serve and the new members for being willing to serve and
give back to their community.

Robert DePietro thanked everyone. He said he is not going anywhere and will be “bugging you”.

P. Sawyer said this has been a very special part of her life. She said she has been rewarded by
some very gracious people who helped her, and in turn, helped her turn it around and give back.
She stated it has been wonderful to work with Mr. Teller, Mr. Eremita, Mr. Morra, and Mr.
Pietro and come forward with many new outside the box ideas. She said she looks forward to
where the future of the town is going.

Executive Session: Discussion on Personnel Evaluation — Administrator Officer

R. Morra MOVED the Board of Selectmen enter Executive Session at 8:59 p.m. for the purpose
of discussion of the Administrative Officer’s salary and contract and to invite James Rupert to
join the session. A. Teller SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 9:05 p.m. once the board had come out of Executive
Session.

Consider and Act on Evaluation for Administrator Officer:

A. Teller MOVED to approve the evaluation just discussed in Executive Session, being the five
draft evaluations done by this board and putting them together with R. Morra’s summary sheet
scoring this as a whole, making this the evaluation of the Town Administrator as a whole. M.
Eremita SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

A. Teller MOVED for a resolution from the Board of Selectmen that has worked with Mr. Rupert
over the last year, and we recommend to the Board that takes office shortly to approve the
following:

1. Mr. Rupert be offered a new 2-year contract with similar terms as the last contract as
Town Administrator, taking effect at the end of this contract. (starting July 1, 2024)

2. That Mr. Rupert be offered a salary increase of 2.52% for the 1% year of that contract,
retroactive to July 1, 2023.

3. A wage reopener for the Town Administrator’s contract the second year.
R. Morra SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Adjournment: A. Teller MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:12 p.m. R. Morra SECONDED.
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Respectfully submitted by Linda H. McDonald Leida #. HeDonald

Please see the minutes of subsequent meetings for the approval of these minutes and any corrections hereto.

Bolton BOS 11/8/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6



TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD OF SELECTMEN SPECIAL MEETING — A/P
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 2023
5:00 P.M. — TOWN HALL AND VIRTUAL
MINUTES

The Board of Selectmen held a special A/P meeting on Tuesday, November 21 with First
Selectman Rodney Fournier presiding. Also, in attendance were selectmen: Robert Morra, Pam
Sawyer, Gwen Marrion, Mather Clarke, Timothy Sadler, Amanda Gordon, and Town
Administrator Jim Rupert.

1. Callto Order.
R. Fournier called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. Consider and Act on the A/P Report.
Motion: R. Morra made a motion to accept the A/P report as presented.

By: R. Morra 2" P, Sawyer

Vote:

Yes: R. Morra, P. Sawyer, T. Saddler, M. Clarke, G. Marrion, A. Gordon, R. Fournier
No: None

Abstain: None
3. Budget Transfer Report.
None.

4. Adjournment.
R. Morra motioned to adjourn the meeting at 5:09 p.m. P. Sawyer seconded.
Respectfully submitted,

Kathy McCavanagh

Please see minutes of subsequent meetings for corrections to these minutes and any corrections
hereto.



PROPOSED 2024
Budget Workshop Dates:

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 ?77?

Tuesday, January 23, 2024

Tuesday, January 30, 2024

Thursday, February 1, 2024

Thursday, February 8, 2024

Tuesday, February 21, 2024

Wednesday, February 22, 2024 (if needed) Snow Date

Thursday, February 23, 2023 (if needed) Snow Date



b.

D. All persons elected or selected to any commission, board, agency or office pursuant
to the provisions of Chapters 2 and 3 of this Charter shall, take office upon qualification, and shall
continue to hold such position until his successor is duly elected and qualified.

Section 3.4  QUADRENNIAL STATE ELECTIONS: OFFICES, TERMS, ADDITIONAL
DUTIES AND TRANSITION

Registrar of Voters. There shall be two Registrars of Voters, one for each major political party, in
accordance with Section 9-189a of the General Statutes, each of whom shall serve a term of four
(4) years. Each Registrar of Voters shall appoint a Deputy Registrar of Voters in accordance with
Section 9-192 of the General Statutes, who shall serve at the pleasure of the Registrar who
appointed such Deputy.

Section 3.5 BIENNIAL TOWN ELECTIONS: COMMISSIONS, BOARDS, AGENCIES
AND OFFICERS, TERMS AND ADDITIONAL DUTIES

A. First Selectman. The First Selectman shall serve a term of four (4) years.

B. Board of Selectmen. The Board of Selectmen shall consist of the First Selectman
and six (6) other Selectmen, each of whom shall serve a term of four (4) years. The votes cast for
any unsuccessful candidate for First Selectman shall be counted as votes for such person as a
member of the Board of Selectmen in that same election. However, notwithstanding any other
provision of this Charter, no person may serve simultaneously in more than one position on the
Board of Selectmen, or on the Board of Selectmen and in any other elected Town office, and a
person shall be deemed to have vacated any such existing elected position immediately upon taking
the oath to serve in any other elected Town office. Beginning in the manner provided by Section
13 of this Charter, the terms of the members of the Board of Selectmen shall be staggered so that
the First Selectman and three (3) members of the Board of Selectmen shall be elected in the same
regular biennial municipal election, and three (3) members of the Board of Selectmen shall be
elected in the next regular biennial municipal election.

C. Finance Committee. The Finance Committee shall consist of four (4) voting Ex-
Officio members and three (3) voting members elected At-Large by the electors of the Town. One
Ex-Officio member of the Finance Committee shall be the First Selectman, or another member of
the Board of Selectmen appointed by the First Selectman to serve in place thereof. One Ex-Officio
member of the Finance Committee (who shall not be a member of the same political party as the
First Selectman or their designee serving as Ex-Officio member) shall be selected from the Board
of Selectmen and shall be appointed by the Board of Selectmen. When the First Selectman serves
personally, the First Selectman’s term as an Ex-Officio member of the Finance Committee shall
be coterminous with their term as First Selectman, provided that the First Selectman may designate
another member of the Board of Selectmen to serve in place of the First Selectman for a term as
provided herein. Two (2) Ex-Officio members of the Finance Committee (who shall not both be
members of the same political party) shall be selected from the members of the Board of Education
and shall be appointed by the Board of Education. All Ex-Officio members of the Finance
Committee (except the First Selectman when serving personally) shall serve a term of two (2)
years, or until a replacement has been appointed and qualified, whichever is later. Ex-Officio
members may be re-appointed to successive terms, but no Ex-Officio member shall continue as a



member of the Finance Committee after vacating their elected office, unless elected to an At-Large
position. Each member of the Finance Committee elected At-Large shall serve a term of four (4)
years. Beginning in the manner provided in Section 13 of this Charter, the terms of the At-Large
members of the Finance Committee shall be staggered so that two (2) At-Large members shall be
elected at same regular biennial municipal election, and one (1) At-Large member shall be elected
at the next regular biennial municipal election. No member of the Board of Selectmen or the Board
of Education may serve as an At-Large member of the Finance Committee. The chair of the
Finance Committee shall be elected by the Committee from among its members at its
organizational meeting.

D. Board of Education. The Board of Education shall consist of seven (7) members
each of whom shall serve a term of four (4) years.

E. Board of Assessment Appeals. The Board of Assessment Appeals shall consist of
three (3) members each of whom shall serve a term of four (4) years.

F. Planning and Zoning Commission. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall
consist of seven (7) members each of whom shall serve a term of four (4) years.

G. Planning and Zoning Commission Alternates. There shall be three (3) Planning and
Zoning Commission Alternates each of whom shall serve a term of four (4) years.

H. Zoning Board of Appeals. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall consist of five (5)
members each of whom shall serve a term of four (4) years.

L Zoning Board of Appeals Alternates. There shall be three (3) Zoning Board of
Appeals Alternates each of whom shall serve a term of four (4) years.

J Town Meeting Moderator. The Town Meeting Moderator shall serve a term of two
(2) years.

Section 3.6  JUSTICES OF THE PEACE

The number of Justices of the Peace shall be that prescribed by and selected in accordance with
the provisions of Sections 9-183b, 9-183c, 9-184, 9-184c and 9-186 of the General Statutes.



Board of Selectmen meetings: 1%t Tuesday of each month
Board of Education meetings: 2" Thursday of each month

Finance Committee:

e BOS Special A/P Meeting - Tuesday, December 19, 2023, - 6:30 p.m. (Town Hall
and via Zoom)

e Organizational Meeting: Tuesday, December 19, 2023 (immediately following A/P
meeting).

o Need to consider and act on (2) other dates before January 31



, td.
U1 HALLORAN Richard L. Barger

860.297.4684

_ﬁd SAG E barger@halloransage.com

November 17, 2023

Via e-mail and USPS

Jim Rupert

Town Administrator
Town of Bolton

222 Bolton Center Road
Bolton, CT 06043

Re: Opinion No. 243
Authority of Town Administrator and Resident State Trooper with Regard
to Performing Various Firearm Permitting and Administrative Functions
Under Connecticut General Statutes as Amended By P.A. 23-130

Dear Jim:

Under date of November 15, 2023, Kathleen McCavanagh requested the
undersigned’s opinion with regard to certain matters and issues raised by Public Act 23-
130 which Public Act amended current Connecticut General Statutes governing the
issuance of state permits to carry pistols or revolvers. Specifically, Kathleen notes that
it appears that your office can designate the Resident State Trooper to perform various
firearms permitting and administrative functions and she wonders whether that is a
correct interpretation under the applicable statutes. She also asked whether you, as
Town Administrator would be considered under the relevant statutes as the chief
operating official of the Town of Bolton. The statutes amended by Public Act 23-130
cover the procedures for receiving requests from residents for a temporary permit to
carry, responsibilities of the “local authority” which under the statutes can be either the
“chief executive officer” or the “resident state trooper”. | will not go into the procedures
and administrative steps in this letter inasmuch as | would assume that both you and
your resident trooper are familiar therewith.

The short answer to the questions posed is that you are indeed considered the
“chief executive officer” of the Town of Bolton and as such, reference made in the
permitting statutes to that office and the responsibilities and authorities related thereto,
can be carried out by you. Section 7-193(D)(2)(B) expressly indicates that the Chief
Administrative Officer appointed by the Board Of Selectmen is considered the “chief
executive officer” of the municipality. (Congratulations on your new appointment.)

Halloran & Sage LLP | One Goodwin Square | 225 Asylum Street '~ Hartford, CT 06103 | 860.522.6103 | Fax 860.548,0006 | hallaransage.com
Harlford | Danbury | Middlelown | New Haven | New London | Springfield, MA = Washington, DC



~ Jim Rupert
Page 2
November 17, 2023

The statutes make clear that the procedures and administrative steps required at
the municipal level can be designated by the chief executive officer to a resident state
trooper. This is repeated throughout the statutory framework involving the issuance of
the temporary permits by a municipality.

If you require anything further with regard to this matter , please do not hesitate
to contact me.

Best regards.

Sincerely,
Richand L. Barger

Richard L. Barger

RLB/hjw

cc:  Kathleen McCavanagh (via email and USPS)

8909020v.2



Draft motions for BOS consideration 12/5/23 meeting

Moved: The Bolton Board of Selectmen approve a 2.52 percent wage increase for the Town
Administrator retroactive to July 1, 2023.

Moved: The Bolton Board of Selectmen authorize First Selectman Rodney Fournier to execute a two year
extension of the existing contract with the Town Administrator.



pa198pngiapun aq [iM Jey3 Juswiiedag

%€8"0€ %10°6¢ %EE VT %95"6€ 8E'86T'VI0'y S| vE'6L9°96C S| ¢LLL8'09€'y S | 8TEoe‘s9s’e S | oo'T80‘'veL'9 S| 00°'180‘veL9 $ sjejol
%¥S° 0% %SL'6E %0T'C€ %E6'9€ 8T°G599/¢€ S | 00°0S¥ S | 8T'SOT'LLE S | Z8'%eT'0ze S | 00°0€2°26S S | 0002265 S Uo1393||0D 31Se/W
%L1 VE %TYV'IE %86°SE %Y1 0V 00'092'T S - $ [ 00092'T S | 00'S¥8 S | 005012 $ | 00°50T'C S UOI1BAIBSUOD)

%00°0 00 v¥T'TT S = S| 00PPT'TT S > S| 00PPTTT S| 00PPT'TT S uol1ealday
%Cy Sl %S0'8Y %IV vy %LT°8Y €5°G0T'6ST S | GL'8EE‘ET S | 8THIP'TLT S| eLotT'seT S | 00°195'20¢€ S | 00°195°20¢€ S Ateagn
%LS'TE %TE O %YS'0v %92°'6E 2€'6/45'90T S | 29'80T'S S| ¥6°£89°TTT S| 90T8.'€9 S | 0069¥'SLT S | 00°69¥'S/LT S SIIAIDS |B1D0S / SIoIUaS

%00°0 00°009 S # S | 007009 S - S | 00009 S | 00°009 S UOISSIWWOD) ,SURIDIBA
%LT 9% %Y8'LY %8¥°0S %62 6V 8670V VT S - S | 86'vO¥'vT S | 20'Y00 VT S | 00°60¥'82 S [ 00°60¥'8¢ S ujwpy yijesH aljqnd
%Y CE %GEEE %SS'TE %b8 8E £6°€29'S0S S | zr'6Te'TE S | 6E°ES6°LES S | 19°594°88¢ S | 00'6TL'928 S | 006TL928 S sdQ Bulpjing umoy /syed
%00°0 %000 %0E'E %00°0 00°00T'% S : S | 00°00TY S - S | 00001V S | 00°00TY S uolssiwwo) gulp|ing d1qnd
%ET9E %ES'SE %CE VS %L6'vY 5/°709°'L8S S|esteozyt S| 8TvEC0EL S| zLzes'Le€ $1002£94°290'T S| 00/94'490T $ s}93.15 pue shemysiy
%0€"8€E %EQ'VE %SS°SY %ELLT 7E'6%0'6 S - S | ze6b0'6 S | 89°056°T S | 00°000°TT S | 00°000°TT S juswasgeue| Aouadiawg
%00°LT %T6°EC %2S°0T %19V 96'90T ¢ S | 00°0ST S [ 96952'vT S| voevL'L $ | 00°000°Z€ S | 00'000°zE S |eysJeln 2414
%00°00T %000 %196 %00°00T - S s S = S | 00°005‘9 $ | 00°005‘9 $ | 000059 S ]0J3U0) [eWIUY
%0L'TY %9€"0S %CT 6V %¢0°LS 90°L/8'0TT S | 66'8T8°0L S | S0'969'18T S | s6¥829L S | 00'T86°£ST S | 00'T86°LST S uolssiwwo) all4
%00°C %LL'T %120 %00'0 00°00€‘TTE S - S | 0o000g‘TTE S = $ [ oo'00€‘TTE S | 00°00€1TE S 22ljod
%S6°61 %CS 0¥ %79'61 %SG8°'6T 06'S9EVS S | 00052'T S | 06°S519°SS S| oTvieet S | 00°0€8°29 S | 00°0€8°29 S suond3|3

%00°0 00'00S5'C S ~ S | 00°00SC S - S | 007005 S | 00°005Z S juawdo|ansq 21wou0d3
%¢9'6 %TCTT %9t'81 %99°'ST 00'S88'T S - S | 00°588‘T S | 00°0S€ S | 0o'sgz'e S | 00'S€ET‘T S Spue|1ap/spuelul
%00°0 %00°0 %000 %81°'€8 00'66T'T S = S | 0066T°T $ | 006509 S | 0085Z°L S [ 00852’ S 9jeqo.d
%T2'09 %CS'TY %9¢° 0 %15 6E 88'699°€6 S - S | 88'699°c6 S | ZT°0€€'T9 $ | 00°000°SST S | 00°000°SST S aouelnsu| Auadoud
%000 %01°C %SY'8 %YTET STEEV'T S - S| STeev't S | s891C S | 00°059°'T S | 00°059°T S s|eaddy jo pieog uiuoz
%SE'Y %T6'CT %95'TE %9L'TT €E0TL'E S : S | egotL'e S| L9V6Y S | 00502y S | 00°soz‘y S 3ujuoz g 3ujuueld
%07’y %ET'SE %L6'VE %09°EY 8¥'¥6T'8T¢ S | 00'66L 7T S | 87'€66°THT S | tEv8ErT S | 00°2€898¢ S | 00'2€898¢€ S asn pue
%TO'EY %0E"EY %LV €Y %V6'EY CE'967'6L S | 00°500°S S | ze'toEv8 $ | 89'8€T'/S S | 00 0v¥ THT S | 000vY'TYT S }43]) umo]
%86°CE %LT'8E %C0'SE %Y1 vy 18°787'865 S - S | 18'287'86S S| 61218 $ | 00°00T‘TZ0'T S| 0000T‘TLOT S s}ijauag aduli
%T8'8E %0C' TV %ET 8E %08°9€ 95°986'65 S - S | 9598665 S | ¥¥'ST6'vE S | 00°zT6'Y6 S | 00CT6'V6 S 10323]|0) Xe]
%9E"6€ %EY EE %T0'SE %S0°'LE LS'LTZETOT S = S| £S5 zzeT0T S | EV'EP9'6S s [ 00°TL6°09T S | 00'TL6'09T S 10ssassy
%00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 00°000'St S - S | 00°000°SYy S - S [ 00000°SY S | 00'000'St S suipny
%88'8E %69'8€ %0€'8E %E6°'8E 206791 S | 00°0S¢ S | 20'666'9vT S | 86°80€'¢€6 S | 00°80€‘0tT S | 00°80g‘0ve S uoneJlsiuiWpy |eloueuly
%LL°6 %6101 %S0T %Y1L 00'5/2'C S G S| 00SL2C S | 00sLT S | 00°05¥'C S | 00°0S¥'T S ddueuld jo pieog
%8C'CE %EV'0E %81'ST %VE 8E 6CVI6'TEY S | €0'8¥S S | zezav'eer S | 89°'L€0°89¢ S | 00°005°00L S | 00°005°00Z S uoflensiulwpy

TCAd CCAd ECAd pasuadx3 papuadxaun JueIqUINIUZ 2ouejeg alA asuadx3y 198png 193png paidopy

%

pasinay

€202 ‘0E 19qWINON H20ZAL




%TT'00T %TT'00T %8666 %8E'TOT %62'T0T %ETTOT

€202°0€°9 €20T°TIE'S €20T°0EY €20TTIEE €200'87°C €20TIET

%ST'TOT %0T'TOT %26'00T %€9°66 %bT 66 %ET'98

0T IETT TWTOSTT  CZOTTIE0T T20T0E'6 Te0T1IES TW0TIEL

v20Z'0€°9 Y20’ 1E'S Y20T 0E'Y vZ0T'TEE v202'8T°C YZ0TIE'T

%S°00T %bE€'00T %6666 %EL'08
€20TTETT €20T°0S'TT  €20C'TEOL €T°0€'6 €20T'1E8 €20T'TIEL
AALDATIOD AATT HA LNIHUND YVAA SNOIATId
%€6'86 VE'6ECOTS6T ¢ - $ (bS'ess‘vs) $ (£9'v98°€T) $ SS'9S9'P8S6T ¢ 00°L6L'9TL'6T $ V101
%60°S/ LT'86T'TY S : $ (06'%9) $ LO'€9E'TH $  00°000'SS $  $334 7 LSIYILNI
%C9°0TT 96'796'C8 S (ss'0007) $ = S (68'52S'T) S O0vV'687'98 S 00°000°SL S SYVIA HOIYd
%56'86 TT'8L6'T6E'6T  $ SS'000T $ (vSessws) ¢ (88°€L2'2zT) ¢ 80°V08'9SH'ET  $ 00°L6L'96S'6T $ 1V.LOL 9NS
%00°0 - s - S ' B $  00°000S6T $ AATT AW'ddNS
%90°56 86'7LV'669'T S EVSKPI'T S (¥9'96V) $ (9£°L0g's)  $ SEIETTOLT  $  OOTWLYUSLT S FIDIHINA HOLOW
%S¥°00T €7°S0ST69°LT S TT'SS8 $ (06'SS0°7S) $ (21°996'8) $ E€T'TLIOVSLYLT $  009S0VI9LT $  AAIT'YA LNI¥YND
139and ¥Z A4 €ZTIE0T sldjsuel], SINAWAVd  SANNJITY arx
aialdATIO) NOLLDATION LAN QANINLTY SNOLLDATIO) aiaLdoav
A9VINADYAd
€TIE0T

0LDATION XV.L



“1c

L :abed 92'1'€202 [lejoqIouoNoAdyid)  spoday INd 65012 £202/0E/LL  :pajuLd
G8°00C$ ‘|ejol Jopusp
G8'002$ ‘[e}O1 3210AUl/Od
0 ‘#9394
aqI - sleusiey Aeiqry €2coc/LLLL
58°002$ 00000°00%95°000000° L0St'G¥0°G00L ¥¥66£9810S 68love L SHM0049 6
:dnolg ¥y
8e9¢eld HOTAVL 8 ¥3Mvd
00'962CL$ ‘|ejo1 Jopusp
00'962'CL$ ‘|E}O1 3010AUI/Od
0 #X93YD
‘MH - Buiwuy @a1) €cociel/LL
00871 '9$ 00000°'#0€+S°000000°€0EY €0°SO0L €C6E8HBL 8co0ve | IVYAONTY 3341 NMOL
‘M'H - Bulwn sa1] gecoe/e/LL
00'871'9% 00000°'¥0€¥S"000000°€0EY €¥0'SO0L €28E8H6.L 8€90te | IYAONTY 3341 NMOL
:dnoig yo8yn
‘00 1d3dX3 3341 HANN1dSY
16'8/1% ‘|ejo JOpusA
1G'8/1L$ ‘[eJo13210AUl/Od
0 #393UD
auag |dw3 - soueInsu| 3y €202/9L/LL
16°821% 00000°00125°000000° LY Lt LF0'SO0L 00¥9.€6 ol €¢0¢ 033d - IDNVINSNI 3417 NMOL
:dnoig yoayn
3417 W3HLNY
2C9Lv$ [[ejo Jopusp
[AAC VA2 ‘[EJOL82I0AUI/Od
0 #%08Y0
Aujiger] Buues|) soueinsuy) €20c/LLLL
IAA VA% 00000°0/££02°000000°0000°000°S00} 91046851 0! €¢0¢ 030a - TvIId3an 334113y
:dnoig ¥o8yn
SS0YO 3NT1d WIHLNY
aje( 9910AU| # Jopuap uonduasag
unowy uno22Yy 3010AU| ‘ON Od ALD SWEN JWaY JOpPUsp
¥202-€20C :leaA |edsid
g€zoz/Lorei €811 :equnp yojeg JaydInop

Bunsi |1ejeq 19yanop

uojjog Jo umo|



z :abed 9z'1'€202 IIe19QIBYINOAd YIS poday INd 65:0L:2  €£20Z/0E/L)L :pajuld

0 #3034
leystey all4 - Bujuies) [euoneonpy “joid gcoe/Le/LL
ONILITIN 1H3dNd r @ 1T1vO
00°05t% 00000°002£5°000000°61Lc¥ 20°S00 ) gciviicL 8v.0vC | M - SNOILYYLSIOFY FONIHIANOD VINLLD €2/vLigL
:dnolg yaayn
NOILVIDOSSY STVHSHVIN J¥I4 LNOILOIANNOD
GEGLLS :|EJOL JOPUSA
GeGLLS -|ejo1 ad10Au}/Od
0 ‘#X99YD
“JadQ Bulp|ing umo] - suonesluNWWoy ¢€coz/ee/LL
gel/eeicL-og/LL
GEGLLS 00000°00€55°000000°66EY €¥0°S00L GLLG# 01l G2/G# LANYALNI dH
:dnolio ¥oayn
"1SVOWO0D
00'09% ‘[EJO1 JOpuaA
00°09% ‘[ejo1 8d10AU|/Od
0 #Xo3Yyd
$9394 uonealnay - weibold [00yas Jayi0 €2c02/9L/LL
ga/Le/LL
00°09% 00000°'604¥¥+0100€ €0SY ' G¥0°0L62 aNn4d3y o1l €2/Le/LL LNODONVYH Avd 2/1L 404 aNN43y
:dnoig yoayn
INIHVD AJSVO
00'¥6¥'1$ ‘lejo| Jopusp
00'v61'L$ :|e101 8210AU|/Od
0 #X93YyD
‘Julepy 831 4uels) Ajadsuue) Aunwwo) €coe/ee/LL
1IvdL
00vEL'LS G60S0°¥0€¥S 000000°0L6%' 6102282 0-2S9¢8.L0Y o1l ALIAILDINNOD 9NOTV MVO FLIHM INNYHd LOOYH
‘JUIB 831 -UBIS) AJARO3UUOD AJUNWWOD €202e/8/LL
ININLVYIHL INTJIHLNNOHOVIN
00°09¢$ G60S0'0€¥S°000000°016%'6%0°C28C 0-159¢8.0% 01l - INVHO0¥d FHVO TI0S 40 NOILVYLINIWI1dINI
:dnolg ¥o3yn
S1¥3dX3 IFHL L13T718vd
aje( a210AU| # lopuap uondiosaq
junowy JUNo2oY 9010AU| "ON Od ALD SWEN JIWay Jopusp
¥202-€202 :lea, |edsiq
€202/L0/2) €8L1 :ldqunp ydjeg JaYyosnop

Bunsi |1e3aq 49yanop

uojjog Jo Umo|



€ -abed 92'1'€20¢ [leyeQIayonoAdyids  Hoday WNd 6S:0L-¢ €202/0g/LL  pajuld
‘MH - Jieday peoy €20¢/92/01L
00'¥SY'LS 00000°00545°000000°€0EP €¥0°S00L ¥.¥90¢ 0S.0%¢ SNOIS avOod
:dnoig yoayo
ONI A1ddNS 8 N9IS LSVYOD 1Sv3
60°265'c$ :|ejo | Jopusp
60°265'c$ -[BJ0 1 8310AU/Od
0 #9840
1edQ Bulpjing umo] - |an4 Buneay €20c/oL/LL
€¢/8/11-0L/01
G8'28¢$ 00000°01¢95°000000°66€Y'€#0'S00L 1v3aH 0 LO¥L# ADOVHYO NMOL - [8n4 Buijeay
“JadQ Buipjing umo] - |an4 Bunesy €coc/oL/LL
€2/8/1L1-0L/0L
€0'LveES 00000°01295°000000°66E° €0°S001L 1Vv3H 0 1L6G/# AdvyglT - [en4 Buiesy
"JadQ Bulpjing umo] - |an4 Bupesy €2¢02/0L/LL
€2/8/11-0L/0L
01'86¢€$ 00000°0L295°000000°66€°'€¥0'S00L 1Vv3H 0 Z.01# TIvH NMOL - [en4 Buesy
"1adQ Bulp|ing umo] - |an4 Buneay €20c/oL/LL
€c/8/LL-0L/0L
0z'0s2% 00000°0L295°000000°'66€Y €0°S001L 1v3H 0 0818# 9019 MHvd - [end Bunesy
"JadQ Buip|ing umo] - |an4 Buneay €2¢0c/oL/LL
€2/8/LL-0L/0L
cs'8ves 00000°01295°000000°'66€Y'€0°G001 1v3H 0 8¥LL# LSY - [on4 Buiesy
“JadQ Bulp|ing umo] - |an4 Buneay €20c/oL/LL
€c/8/LL-0L/oL
19'80¢$ 00000°'0L295°000000°'66E7'€0°'G00L 1v3H 0 6906# Ld3Q 344 - 18n4 Buneay
"12dQ Bulpjing umo] - jan4 Bugeay €coc/oL/LL
€2/8/L1L-0L/0L
2'80.$ 00000°0L295°000000°66E€Y €¥0°S001 1v3aH 0 799L# MNV.L TIVINS DINYN - 18nd Bunesy
“JadQ Buiping umo] - |an4 Bunesy €20c/oL/LL
€2/8/11-0L/0L
0€'656% 00000°01295°000000°66€Y €¥0°S00 L 1v3H 0 959L# OWYN - [on4 Buijesy
:dnoio ¥oayn
'dd00 SVO TVINLVYN LNOILOANNOD
00°0S1$ ‘[ejo1 lopusp
000S1$ -[Bj018310AUl/Od
aje a210AU| # JOPUaA uonduosaq
junowy JUNo2oY 9010AU| ‘ON Od ALD aWeN jway Jopusp
¥202-€20C :1ed\ |edsid
€202/L0/2) €811 lldqunN yojeq I8ydsnop

BuysiT jlejaq 49yanop

uojjog JO umo |



b :abed

9z'l'e2e0e

Ie}2QI8YdNOAdYAdI  Hoday Nd 6G6:0}:¢ €20c/0e/L1  pajuld

1adQ Buipjing umo] - Ajoues|g €coc/LLVL
€C/LLILL-6L/0L
00'v¥$ 00000°02¢295°000000°66€'€¥0'S001L SS0c# 0 §G0Z# 093ZVO - Aowos|3
1adQo Bulpjing umo] - Ajouoalg €coc/LLILL
€a/LLLL-6L/0L
19'Gzes 00000°02295°000000°66E£°'€¥0°S001L SY0OC# 0 SYOZ# AYVHalT - fiouos|g
Jado Bulpjing umo) - Ajouos|g €c0c/LLILL
€c/LL/LL-6L/0L
8L vv$ 00000°02295°000000°66€Y €¥0°S001 LvOC# 0 Ly0Z# dNI - AIouio8|3
Jado Buipjing umo] - Ayouyos|g €coc/LLILL
€C/LLLL-6L/0)
€0'LG$ 00000°02295°000000°'66€Y €¥0°S001 LEOC# 0 LE0Z# SNOIT - Aiouioe|3
JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Ajioupd9lg €coc/LLLL
€2/LLILL-6L/0L
(WARZS 00000°02295°000000'66EY'€¥0°S001L 020c# 0 020Z# ¥v3Y HOLON 86 - Aou3os|g
-1ado Buipjing umo] - Ayouya|3 €coc/LLIVL
€C/LLILL-6L/0)
1G°005$ 00000°'02¢295°000000°'66€Y°'€¥0°'G00) v10c# 0 #102# TTYH WINOD/TTVH NMOL - Aouyos|3
JadQ Buipjing umo] - Ayouyoa|g €coc/LLILL
€C/LL/LL-6L/0L
18'59¢$ 00000°02295°000000°'66€Y'€¥0°S001 L00¢C# 0 £00Z# 1Ld3A M1 - Awouyoe|3
:dnoig y2ay9H
"A0UNOSHINT
L0'92S LS ‘lejo] Jopusp
10'925°L$ ‘[BJ018210AU|/Od
0 #398Yy)d
‘M'H - suljose9 g |asalq €coc/iLiLL
10°925'L$ 00000°09295°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00 L NML 8¢6.€01 0 VO Y3d 8¥6£26'2$ @ TvO 0612 - 13S31a
:dnoig yoayn
ADYANT H3IAIY LSV3
00'¥St'L$ ‘|eJ0| IOpUBA
00¥St'L$ ‘[ejo 1 8d10AU/Od
0 #309YyD
ajeq a2I0AU| # 10pUBA uopduosaq
unowy 1unodoy 82I0AU| "ON Od ALD SWeN Jway Jopuap
¥20¢2-€20C :1edA |edsiq
gzoe/Lorel €811 :lsqunp yodjegq JSYonoA

Bunsi 11ejaq 19yanop

uojjog 4O umo |



S :abed 9¢'1°€20¢e lle}o@IayonoAdyids  uoday Nd 65:0L:¢ €202/0g/LL  -pajuld
80°.¢2$ -|EJO L JOPUSA
80°2£2$ ‘|ejo 1 3010AUl/Od
0 #399yD
‘ueul - selddng 22130 £coc/g/LL
ONIddIHS SN1d SS3Yaav Zw_D._.m_wS_S
80°.¢2$ 00000°02195°000000°LL L¥'L¥0O'G00) 08099 L0L0¥C | S3dOTIANT MOANIM 01# ONITYIS-473S 000°L
:dnoug ¥o3yn
OT11 VIA3IN-SSOHD NOIsSNd
€9'618'c$ :|EJOL JOpUsSA
€9°G18'e$ :|e101 8210AU}/Od
0 #393yd
JadQ Bulpiing umo] - Ayouioalg €coc/LLiVL
€CILLILL-6L/0)
€9'25¢$ 00000°'02295°000000°'66€Y €70°G00L 8606# o I 8606# S1HNOD SINNIL - Aioujos|3
"1adQ Bulpjing umo] - AyoLyoa|g €c0c/LLILL
€CILLILL-6L/0)
L0'Sv$ 00000°'02295°000000°'66€°'€0°G001L PE09# o1l ¥€09# A3HS dO-1g - fyouos|3
JadQ Buipling umo - Ayoyoa|3 £c0oc/oL/LL
€2/oL/LL-EL/0L
yseLs 00000°02295°000000°66€Y €70°S001 PEOSH# 0ol PE0S# WYV I39A1Y HOIH - Aoy
1adQ Bulp|ing umo] - Ayouyos|g €coc/LLILL
€¢/LL/LL-6L/0L
L0°.¥2$ 00000°02295°000000°66EY €¥0°S001L 690v# ol 690%# 1314711V - Aiouoe|3
1edQ Buipjing umo - Ayouyos|g €coc/LLLL
€C/LLLL-6L/01
zeLes 00000°02295°000000°66€Y €0°'S001 620v# o1l 620v# 4Hd - Moo
adQ Bulpjing umo] - Ayowyos|g €c0oc/oc/L L
€C/LLILL-6L/0L
ey'8ce'L$ 00000°02295°000000°66EY €¥0°S00L ¢60c# o1l Z60Z# OINYN - Aj1ou308|3
JadQ Buipjing umo] - Aouos|g €coc/LLIVE
€2ILLILL-6L/0L
EVGLLS 00000°02295°000000°66EY €¥0°S001 980¢C# o1l 9802# 1SY - Aiouios|g
"JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Ajouoalg €coc/LLILL
€2/LLILL-6L/0L
00vr$ 00000°02295°000000°66E€Y €0°S00 L SL0c# 0 I G/02Z# SSS HOLON 86 - Ayo1308[3
8je(q 8210AU| # lopuap, uonduosaq
junowy JunoooYy 8010AU| "ON Od ALD SWEeN JIWay Jopusp
Y202-€20C :l1es, |edsiq
€e0z/LoizL ‘€811 :l8qunp yojeq I3ydnop

Bunsi 1e3aqg 19yonop

uojjog 4O umo |



9 :abed 9¢'L'eeoe Iley2@IayonoAdyids  :Hoday Nd 6S:01:2 €20c/0E/LL  ‘pajuld

VYVVH
00'582'L$ ‘[ej0] JOpUBA
00'682°L$ ‘|ejo] 8210AU|/Od
0 #03YyD
waysAs Juswabeueyy ABisu3 - saniiqer] Jayio €20¢/L2/0L
S3AVHOdN WILSAS LNJNIDVNVYIN
00682°1$ 00000°€5252°000000°056%'6¥0°28YE 145144 LeSove L ONIATING/INILSAS LNINIDOVNVIN ADHIANT SO9
:dnoig ¥oayH
ANVdANOD ZN31 '4'H
L0'68% ‘|EJOL JOPpUSA
L0'68$ :|ejo01 8010AU|/Od
0 :#>08uD
adQ Buipjing umo] - saiddng £c0oc/8/LL
L0'68% 00000°00195°000000°66€€¥0°S00L 0419028686 01 ONIATINgG dNF1L HO4 NOIS LIXI/LHOIT AONIDYEINIT
:dnoio yoayon
leled HIONIVHO
0005Z'L$ ‘|EJOL JOopusp
00°05Z°L$ ‘|01 3210AU|/Od
0 #3934D
"UILIPY - S82IAIBS Y03 JayO €coc/ivLiLL
00°052°L$ 00000°025€5°000000°20LY°L¥0°S00L L1€¥€00009d 01l STVIYILVYIN TYNOILYONA3 d3Lvadn
:dnoig }oayn
81261 3d00 TvH3INID
G6'v0E'v$ {[EJOL JIOpUSA
S6'v0E'v$ ‘|E}013310AUJ/Od
0 #X93YyD
‘AMH - Jiedoy peoy €coe/vLILL
S6'v0E'P$ 00000°00525°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00L 60,205 6.¥0FC | Ay SIAVITIIM ® HONIYS - ONIAV
:dnoig) yo9yn
OT1 STVIYILYIN OSSVIVD
aje( 22I0AU| # JOpUBA uonduosaq
junowy JunodoYy 9210AU| ‘ON Od ALD SWeN JIway Jopuap
¥202-€20C :-ied\ |edsiq
€e0z/Lo/Z) €811 :laqunp yodjeq JdYyonop

Bupsi |1e3aq 49yanop

uojjog Jo UMo |



/ :abed

92'1°€20¢2 [IB19QI8YoNoAdyIdl  Hoday Wd 6S:0L:¢ €20Z/0E/LL  -pajuld
‘ulwpy - sadineg |eba €coc/s/ioL
00°gevs 00000°020€5°000000°L0LY L ¥0°S00L so9leviL 0 L1V3aMHL VENVY1 A VIVEY1 NHOF - s801aes [ebar
‘ulwIpy - saolAleg |eba €c0¢/L/6
00°0vZ$ 00000°020€5°000000° 201+ L¥0'S00 L v6c6LyLL 0 SYALLYIA TANNOSYId - sedineg [eban
‘ulpy - sealnieg [eba €20¢/L/6
05°.9% 00000°020€5°000000°L0LY"L¥0°S00L €626LYLL 0 YSNVYNSNMO ‘A NOL104 - seoineg [eban
‘ulWpY - Sa2IAIS BB €202/./6
011 IVLIdYONAHISXVL
00°0ce$ 00000°020£5°000000°20L¥ L¥0°S00L c626LyLL 0 M3IINTY LOVHLNOD - saoineg [eba
‘ulWpY - sedInIeg [eba €20¢/LI6
000v5$ 00000°020€5°000000°L0LY"L¥0°S00L L626L1LL 0 MOY FdNLNd dY OJIYN3T - seoinas [ebe
“UlWPY - S30AIRS [eba £20c/vLI8
005LeS 00000°020£5°000000°20L¥ L ¥0'S00L cLy8LYLL 0 VSNVYNSNMO ‘A NOL109 - seoineg |eban
‘ulwpY - sadIAIeS BB €20c/ivLI8
O IVLIdYOALISXV L
00°09%$ 00000°020€5°000000°20L¥ L ¥#0°S00L Lip8LyLL 0 M3IINTY LOVHLINOD - solniag [eba
"ulWpYy - sedlnIag [eba €2c0c/vLI8
00°000'2$ 00000°020€5°000000°20LY°L0°S00L 0L¥8LYLL 0 MOY JUNLN4 Y ODIYNT - seoineg [eba
‘ulpY - sediniag [eba €coc/vL/8
0scozs 00000°020€5°000000°20LY"L¥0°S00L 69¥8LYLL 0 11VIMHL VENYT A VIVYY1 NHOT - seoineg [ebe
‘UlWpY - saolAleg [eba €20e/ivLI8
00°029% 00000°020£5°000000°L0LY"L¥0°S00L 89¥8LYLL 0 VD31 IVYINID - seolnes |eber
:dnolg yoayn
d1139VS ? NVHOTIVH
00°07$ ‘|ejo Jopusp
000v$ ‘[E}O 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #3993yD
‘ssassy - Buuies] |euoneanp3 ‘joid geoc/ec/LL
NOSNHOr
00°0v$ 00000°002€S°000000° LELY LPO'G00L ONILIAN €2/2/2) 0 YV ® NVINHSIH Y ‘NOILVHLSIOIY ONILIIN €2/L/2L
:dnoug ¥o8yn
ajeq 9910AU| # JOpUap uondussaq
unowy UNo%oYy 8910AU| "ON Od ALD SWEeN JIWaY Jopusp
¥202-€202 :1edA |edsly
£€202/L0/CL €8L1 aquinp yojeq Jaydnop

Bupsi [reyoq 49yanop

uojjog Jo umo|



8 :abed TR A4 [le}9QJayonoAdyid!  Hodey Nd 65:0L-2 €20¢/0g/LL  -pajuld
:dnolio ¥23yn
NYIWHSIH VdYM
Sv'891L% ‘|e}o| Jopuap
S¥'89L$ ‘[ejo1 8210AUl/Od
0 ‘#X93Yyd
$994 uojeasnay - weiboid |ooyog Jayio €202/9L/LL
ca/Li-oz/LL
S¥'891$ 00000°604¥¥'+0100€ €0GY G¥0°0.L62 aNnd43yd o1l €¢/cc/L1-02/L L SANNJ3Y LNODNVH Avad ¢/1
:dnolig 39yn
THVYLS N3r
82'€9l'l$ ‘[ejo] Jopusp
82'c9l‘L$ '|B}O 92I0AU|/Od
0 #08yd
"unpy - Bujutel) jeuoneanp3 yoid €coz/ie/LlL
LINIsHNganigy ONIMYVYd B XVL
82'€9l'L$ 00000°002£5°000000°20L+"L¥#0°G00 L 001 g€20e 01 ‘INOOY - STLINS ASSYAINT YO INIWISHNGNITY
:dnoug }oayo
Lve6l L 1d3dNy SFNVr
2S’Lov$ ‘|EJOL JOpUBA
2s1ov$ ‘[e}0 8210AU|/Od
0 #393yD
"1adQ Buipiing umo - saljddng €20T/LLLL
2s'Lov$ 00000°00195°000000°66E7"€¥0°G001 09€11€509 SclLove | ¥06001L071IH HANVITO WOOHLSIY I3H4-AIDV - DYV
:dnoig yoayn
pue|bug maN - pieAl|iH
00°00L'9% ‘lejo Jopusp\
00°001'9% ‘|EJO1 82I0AUI/Od
0 #X98yD
‘ulpy - saoineg [eba €202/S/0L
00°006$ 00000°020£5°000000° 20" L¥0°S00L 999ievlLL 0ol MOY JdNLN4 @Y OJIYNT - seoineg [eba
a)eq 90I0AU| # Jopuap, uonduosaq
unouly Junoooy a0j0AU| "ON Od ALD SWeN JIWaY JOpUap
¥202-€202 :leaA |eosid
€eoe/Lore)L €811 equinp yojeg Joyodnop

Bunsi |1e3aq 48ysnop

uojjog Jo umo |



6 :abed 9¢'L'€20¢e Ilej2QJauUdNOAdYIdl  Hoday Wd 65:0l'¢ €¢0¢/0€/LL  :pajuld

‘JadQ Buipjing umo] - salddng £20¢/0¢/0L
99°062% 00000°00195°000000°66€Y €+0°G001 8€GEL 9coove L ININISVE dH HO4 H3IdIdINNHIA ® S3INddNS JSIN
:dnoig y29yn
2£'8.€9$ :|ejo | 8010AU[/Od
0 #308yd
Jadp Buipjing umo] - selddng €¢0¢/0¢/0lL
ce'8.¢€$ 00000°00195°000000°66€¥ €0°'G00L 62S€L 8ysove | SHIVdIY d31H0SSY HO4 S3AINddNS ® SIVIYILVYIN
:dnoig y3uH
26°0v$ -[BJ013310AU}/Od
0 ‘#93yD
"12dQ Bulpjing umo - saliddng €20c/LLILL
1S3H3LNI
26°0% 00000°'00195°000000°'66€Y°€¥0°'G00L e€clILLILL 01l FOHVHO LSIHILINI
“JadQ Bulp|ing umo] - salddng gcoe/cL/LL
IDHVHO
00°0v$ 00000°00195°000000°66€EY€0°G001 ALV €2/CL/LL o1l AOUVHO LINIJNAVC 31V
:dnoug yoayn
8GLLL LNNODJV SSANISNG SIMO
00'69% :|ejo] Jopusp
00'69% :|ej0 | 3210AU|/0d
0 #3%8UD
1adQ Bulpjing umo] - saiiddng €20c/LLILL
00'69% 00000°00195°000000°66€Y €¥0°S001 cLy8g (O 17vs
:dnoig ¥oayn
¢l/e9d JU| 99MIAS )N dsioquielie]
ooolzs J|eJOL Jopusp
ooolzs ‘[ejo 1 30I0AU}/Od
0 #Xo9yd
'SS9SSY - 5894 9 sanQ €coe/6e/lLL
£2/52/01 ¥20¢ 1ddV HONOYHL
oooLzcs 00000°00185°000000°LELY L0 SO0L STNLYVINS ol €202 AON S3NA SN LD "HO4 INFINISHNGWITH
aje( 8210AU| # JOpuaj uonduosaq
junowy JUno2oYy 8210AU| 'ON Od ALD SWEN JWay Iopusp
¥202-€202 :des) [edsid
€202/L0/2) €811 :dqunn yodjeq JaYydnop mC_“_.w_J [tejag 19yonoA

uojjog JO UMo |



(o] 3 :abed 92'1'€20e IBY2QI8YoNOAdYIdl  poday Nd 65:0L:2 €202/0E/LL  pajuld
:dnoug 309yH
AL34VS MMVYHOWN
81'25$ ‘|EJOL Jopusp
8¥'25$ ‘|B}oL&210AU|/Od
0 ‘#393UD
1q17 - sjeusyep Aieigr €cociviiLL
[ ZALTAS 00000°00%95°000000° LOS¥'S0°S00) L0LLE9Y0S c6love L anal
“1q1 - sjeusyely Aeiqr gcoc/eL/LL
25G695Y0G#
(vz'9z$) 00000°'00%95°000000° LOS¥'S¥#0°S00L 6EEECIOV0S c6love L ANINOY4 AN | 40 NdNL3Y HO4 1Id3dd
117 - sjeusyepy Aieigr €20oc/Le/ol
8v'2s$ 00000°00%95°000000°L0S¥'S¥0°S00L ¢55695¥0S é6love L sanac
:dnoig yoayn
€.162L 3dVL1 LSIMAIN
00°'Le2$ ‘|ejo L JOpuUsA
o0o'Lezs ‘[Bj018010AU/Od
0 #3934
‘117 - sjeusyepy Aeiqi] €coe/i/LL
SSvd
00'Lez$ 00000°00%95°000000°L0S¥'S¥0'S001 AdvdaI1 v¥20c gelove | ve/Le/g-1/1 TVYMANTY SSYd WNASNIN
:dnoig yoayn
yaeel WN3ISN S.NIHATIHD ZLN1
veeey'L$ ‘|ejoL JOpusp
€8s ‘[Bj0 1 8d10AU/Od
0 ‘#3%84D
JadQ Buipjing umo] - saiiddng €coc/el/L)
) ININFDV 143 HOOT4d WOOHLSTY
P'e8.L$ 00000°00195°000000°66EY €#0°S00 ) [424°1A 8590¥¢ | TIVH NMOL HO4 S3ITddNS 8 SIVIYILVYIN
:dnoi ¥oayn
99°062% -[ej018210AU|/Od
0 ‘#3994D
ajeq a2I0AU| # Jopus uonduasaq
unowy Junoooy 8010AU| "'ON Od ALD SWEeN }JIWaY JOPUsA
¥202-€202 :1edA |edsld
€20z/L0/2) €811 :iaquinn ydjegq Jayosnop

Bupsi |1eyaq 19YyanoA

uojjog JO umo|



L :obed

9c¢'L'eecoc

llej2aJaydnoAdyidl  :poday Nd 6S:0L¢ €¢0c/0g/LL  pajuld

"UlWpY - SBDIABS o3 ] /[euoissajold €coe/LLiLL
00'6.2% 00000°'00€€5°000000°£0L¥ L¥0O'SO0L L00L1 3ISN3DIT Z NV1d IANITNO IONVYHIX3
“uIWpY - $82IAIAS Y03 Jayl0 €¢0c/L/6
€coce
00628'c$ 00000°025€5°000000°20L¥ " L¥#0°S00L €Leal 1d3S - SOAS ALIYND3S 8 SOAS ANO1D '1¥0ddNS
:dnoig) y29yH
ouj 'ybisuj snaoN
00SLLS -[ejoL Iopusp
00GL1L$ ‘[ejo1ad10Au|/Od
0 ‘#X93YyD
S9DIAI9G 'ssajold JaylQ - Bululel) |euoissajold €2c0z/8/L )
124V
00GLLS 00000°00¥€S°LLLO0EE0SY ' GP0'0L62  MINTYH ¥90L0¥ ANVHO S - #202 HO4 dIHSHIFNIN TVNNNY
:dnolg yoayn
80LEL O0SSV MdVd @ NOILY3IHI3Y TYNOILYN
VLIS ‘[eJoL Jopuap
LLLLS !|e}0] 8210AU|/Od
0 #X93UD
‘wwo) auld - saijddng e % sieday €20c/9L/LL
0/85€€-€690# ANI NO dd 3014d
(Z1'6L9) 00000°00195°000000°€02¥ 20°S00 L L9E6EE-€690 T11N4 INOYH FONIHI4HIA - 110 NO ITVS HO4 LIa3aydd
‘wwo) all4 - saiddng e @ sieday €202/02/01
88'06$ 00000°00195°000000°€02¥ 2¥0°S001L 0/85€€-€690 HSVYM QT3IHSANIM ? 110
:dnoig) ¥3yn
S1dVd 01NV YdvN
00201$ ‘[EJO L Jopusp
00°201% ‘|e}o1 8210AUl/Od
0 #393YD
“JadQ Buip|ing umo] - suuoyun €cocre/LL
SINOTO XHOM
00°201% 00000°0£695°000000°66€Y €0°G001 Levvel HIHLYIT ? SINOTO SOINVHOIN ‘STSSY1O ALIAVS
a)e 92I0AU| # lopuap uonduosaq
unowy JUN022Y 9010AU| ALD SWEN JIWaY Jopuap
¥202-€20C :1edA |edsld
€e0z/L01ZL €811 :aquiny yojeg Jaydnop

Bunsi |1e3eq 49Yyanop

uojjog Jo umo|



cl :abed 9¢'L'ee0e le}o@IaudNoAdyIdl  ‘Hoday Nd 65:01:¢ €2¢0c/0E/LL  pajuld
00'S.$ ‘|ejo lopusp

00'G.$ ‘[eJO18210AU|/Od
0 #3934D
puepapy/pue|u| - Bulutel) [euoleonp3 ‘joid gcoe/Lel/Ll
00'G6.$ 00000°002€S5°000000°€9L¥ L #0°S00L OMIDVD €2/€2/0L o1l ONILIFN OMIDVYO €2/L1/1L JO4 LNFNISHNGINITY
:dnoig yoayn
ATIV1 SSOd
00'00S'e$ ‘lejo | Jopusp
00°00S'c$ ‘|EJ013DI0AU|/Od
0 ‘#X994D
as( pueT @ ‘pling - AIBS Y23] /[BUOISSBJ0ld €202/9e/LL
00°00%'}$ 00000°00€€S5°000000° LS LY L¥0°SO0L €2/9¢/L 1L AN 0 0¢ €2/9¢/11-02/11 SAVINYIS ONILTNSNOD ATINOH
as() pueT 3 'pling - AISS Y03 /[euoissajold €c0c/9g/L1L
00°00L°2$ 00000°00€€5°000000°LSLY°LP0'S00L €2/6L/1LL I 0 o¢ €¢/6L/L1-€L/LL STOINEIS ONILTNSNOD AT4NOH
:dnoug ¥oayn
NOSYHVO 1301d1vd
08°L¥$ ‘|eJo | JOpusA
08°L¥$ :|B}018210AU|/Od
0 #>934D
‘MH - lieday peoy £€¢0c/02/0)
08°L¥$ 00000°00545°000000°€0EY €¥0°SO0L 91989 0 J134ONOD NOSVIN 40 Sove ¥
:dnouo yoayn
ONI S3IYLSNANI 930
00'652'5$ ‘|EJOL JOPUSA
00'652'S$ ‘|EJO13310AUI/Od
0 ‘#X994yd
‘UlWpY - S3JIAJSS Y23 ] /[eUoISsalold €c0c/oe/LL
00°0€€$ 00000°00€€5°000000°20L¥"L¥0'S00L ¢00.L 0o ¢ ¥31L ADNIOHINST - SLOIrodd SWILSAS 31av1lig
‘ullpy - s80IAI8S o8] /[euoissajold €2c0c/0g/LE
00'528$ 00000°00€£5°000000° 204" L¥0°G00L ¢00.L 0o J0INY3S TIVO-NO SHNOH H3L4V €2/2/LL
aleq a210AU| # Jopuap uofduosaqg
junowy JunoodYy 9D10AU| "'ON Od ALD SWEN JIWay JOpuap
¥202-€20C :1ed) |edsiq
€eoz/LoreL €8L} :Jequinp yojeq Jayonop

Bunsi 1e3ag 49yonop

uojjog Jo umo|



€l -abed 9z'L'e€e0e Ie12qIayonopndvids  poday Nd 66-0L:2 €202/0¢/LL  pajuld
‘MH - lleday peoy €202/9L/LL
91°129'v$ 00000'00625°000000°€0EY €#0°S00L /¥82981 cceove L 1IVHJSY
:dnoig 308y
6€0LL "ONI LNOILOIANNOD NODIL
00'v2es -[ejoL Jopuap
00'vees ‘[B}O 1 3310AU/Od
0 #X03yD
"1adQ 'pling UMO| - S80S “Julely B Jieday €coc/Le/LL
00'vez$ 00000°'00€¥S5°000000°66EY €¥0°S00 L /88108 G690vC | HIVd3d YOSNIS NOILOW {3 LNID HOINIS
:dnolg) yoayn
0226l L ou| ‘salbojouyoa] Ajnoag
00'6es$ ‘[ejoL Jopusp
00'6es$ ‘|eJo1 8210AU|/Od
0 #X93YyD
UH "qnd - S1oBjUOD JBaUYi0 e€cociviiLL
00°'62S5$ 00000°0L0SS°000000° LOYY +¥0°S00 L £€9€85168¢£202C 6€L0vC | ALIDVdAVYO A3asSNNN - DINITO LOHS N4
:dnoig) yoayn
OT11SINILSAS WIVTIOLAIMOS
88'/61% ‘|ejo] JOpUaA
88°/61% :|e10] 8210AU|/Od
0 #X034d
10913 - saiddng “1adQ 8210 ¢€coc/LLioL
€e/LLi0L SININHSTHITIH
S'6es 00000°02195°000000°L61L¥ L¥#0°S00L dOHS ® dO1S 0 ! ONILIIN OVAOH - LNJNISHNGNITH
8|3 - salddng “Jado 290 €202/9/0)
€2C/9/LL
12'901$ 00000°02195°000000°L61L¥ L¥#0°G00L 3114 dOHS 0o 1 SHOVNS HIHNIOM T10d - LINFWISHNFGNITY
9|3 - saddng "1adQ 8910 €coc/Le/ol
g€e/Le/olL SMOVNS
22'95% 00000°021+95°000000°26L¥ L¥0°'G00L Ad ANVYTHDIH o1l ONINIVHL ¥INHOM T170d - INFWNISHNGNITH
:dnoio yo8yn
9G20%vL O0d3Id AANVYS
aje 9210AU| # Jopuap uonduosaq
Junowy Juno2oy 9210AU| "ON Od ALD SWEeN }iway Jopusp
V¥202-€20C :1edA |edsiq
€20z/L0/CL €811 :lsqunp yojeg Jaydnop

Bugsi j1ejaq Joyonop

uojjog JO UMo |



14 :abed 9z'1°€202 IIe12QIaUdNOAdId!  :Hoday Nd 65:01:2 €202/0g/L1  ‘pajuld
:dnoig yoayn
OT1 IMYN3IA 34vO3IM
£6°202$ ‘|EJOL JOPUBA
€67202$ ‘|EJO13210AU|/Od
0 #Xo9uD
“1adQ Buipjing umo] - sayddng €coe/ielLL
€6°202$ 00000°00195°000000°'66EF'€#0°S00L 6€0.91 6v.0vC | S37aAvd 43IMOYHL MONS
:dnoio yoayn
Leovel "ONI 'SNOS 8 SSNI¥d 'HM
6v'8.2$ ‘|EJo] JIOpUSA
6v'8.2$ ‘|EJOL®210AU}/Od
0 #3994D
‘NIag "uag - auoydsja) €coc/elL/LL
L¥'8L$ 00000°00€55°000000° L2¥Y +¥0°G00 L 05ery96166 o1l €8€G# ¢ INIT - INOHJ Y10 HOIN3IS
‘Alag "uag - auoyds|a €coc/6L/LL
L¥'8L$ 00000°00€55°000000°2Z¥¥ ¥¥0°G001 0S€¥96166 o1l 0L L# L INIT - INOHd 1D HOIN3S
“JadQ Bulping UMo] - SUORESIUNWWOY €coc/6L/LL
8¥°05$ 00000°00€55°000000°'66€Y €#0°S00L 0S€¥96166 01l 98€e# 1H43dNY WIF - INOHJITIL NMOL
“1adQ Buipjing uMo] - suolEsIUNWWOY €coc/el/LL
56°92% 00000°'00£55°000000°66€Y €70°S00L 0SEYY96166 0ol S/.L/# 1d3A SHYVd - ANOHdI 3L NMOL
"JadQ Bulpjing umo]_ - suopesIUNWWOY €eoc/eL/LL
Lo'0v$ 00000°00€55°000000°'66€Y €#0'S00L 0SEVY961¥66 01l ¢80L# 1d3A 234 - INOHJITIL NMO.L
‘wwoy ailf - suogedlunWwwWwoy €c0oc/LiLL
LLveLS 00000°00€55°000000°€02'2¥0'S00L 95¥6858Y66 o1l €202 AON - INOHd 1130 1d3a 344
:dnolo ¥8yn
SSO[OlIM UOZIIBA
9L'129'v$ ‘|eJOL JOpuaA
91'129'v$ ‘|E}OL3210AUI/Od
0 ‘#3294D
ajeq 9210AU| # lopuap uonduasaqg
unowy JUNo2oy 9210AU| ‘ON Od ALD SWEN JIWSaY JI0puap

geoz/Loret €8L1 :laquinN yojeq J9YoanoA

¥202-€20Z :1ea, |edsiq
Bunsi jlejaq 49yanop

uojjog JO umo |



Sl :obed 92'1'€20¢ lejo@Iayanopdvids  :oday Nd 65012 €20Z/0€/LL  :pajuLd
Hoday jo pu3
€0°029'85% ‘[ejol pueln
€2'9¢$ :[eJOL JOpuaAp
€2°9¢$ :|ejo 3d10AU|/Od
0 #398YyD
‘M'H - lieday peoy €coc/LE/L
€2°9¢$ 00000°0054S°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00L 0¢860¢ 0 I 1TVHJSY 31SVM
:dnous) yoayn
62S0¥L 0711 ‘STVIMILYIN WYHANIM
00°0sv$ ‘[ejo L Jopusp
00°05v$ ‘[BJ0 1 8210AU|/Od
0 :#399yD
"AIag "Joy - ‘[eAoway asnjay €coc/g/LL
00°05+$ 00000°L0L¥S°000000°G0¥8'+¥80°GO0L  O0ES860NLTIANI vLoove | HSNY4Y 370A03Y
ajeq 8210AU| # Jopuap uonduasaq
unowy JUNo22Yy 9010AU| "ON Od ALD aweN JIWay Jopusp
Y202-€202 :1es\ |edsiq
€eo0zc/Lore) €8L1 :lsquinnN ydjeg J18YydnoA

Bunsi [1e3aq 49yonop

uojjog Jo umo |



